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3/23/2017 
 

QUESTIONS – ANSWERS – CLARIFICATIONS  

MARCH LANE ADAPTIVE TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM 
PROJECT NO. PW1312/FEDERAL PROJECT NO. CML-5008(127) 

 

1. Question:  We kindly request that Instructions to Bidders, clause 25. 
INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS, be limited to the negligent acts or 
omissions of the Contractor, its employees, affiliates, subcontractors, and 
suppliers. 

 
Answer:   The City will not change the indemnification language. 

 
2. Question:     We request that the following language be added to clause 25 of 

Instruction for bidders, INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS: 

“Notwithstanding anything in this agreement to the contrary, Contractor is not  
liable, whether based in contract, warranty, tort (including negligence), strict 
liability, indemnity or any other legal or equitable theory, for: loss of use, revenue, 
savings, profit, interest, goodwill or opportunity, loss of production, costs of capital, 
costs of replacement or substitute use or performance, loss of information and 
data, loss of power, voltage irregularities or frequency fluctuation, claims arising 
from buyer's third party contracts, or for any type of indirect, special, liquidated, 
punitive, exemplary, collateral, incidental or consequential damages or for any 
other loss or cost of a similar type.” 
 
“Contractor’s maximum liability under this agreement under any theory of recovery, 
whether based in contract, in tort (including negligence and strict liability), under 
warranty, indemnity or otherwise, shall not exceed the total price paid to Contractor 
under this agreement.” 

 
Answer:   The City will not change the indemnification language. 

 
3. Question:     We kindly request that the City of Stockton cap the liquidated 

damages at 10% of the price of the contract. 

Answer:  The City follows Caltrans’ standard on imposing the liquidated damage 
amount as posted. 
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4. Question:     What are the payment terms of the project(s)? 

Answer:  The contractor will invoice the City on a monthly basis.  Please refer to 
Section 9 of the Special Provisions. 

 
5. Question:   Will the March Lane and Pershing Ave projects run in parallel or 

sequentially? 

Answer:  The two projects are being bid on similar schedule and they possibly 
could be awarded at similar time.   While the projects may not start or end at exactly 
the same time, there is a possibility that some or all work on both projects could 
be done in parallel with each other. 

 
6. Question:     Can the City provide a list of materials they want tested? 

Answer:  City will test all of the new traffic signal cabinets that are delivered for this 
project.  During the submittal approval process, the contractor may be required to 
demo/test the materials/products that City staff is not familiar with, such as the 
CCTV cameras, Ethernet switches, fiber optic video/data transceivers, encoders, 
as specified in Section 77 of the Special Provisions.  Please also refer to Section 
6, "Control of Materials" of the Caltrans Specifications and the project special 
provisions. 

 
7. Question:     Can the City provide a list of those materials they want to be present 

for the testing? 

Answer:  In most cases, city staff will be present during any demo/testing of the 
materials/products that staff is not familiar with or potentially have compatibility 
issues with City’s existing equipment.  A list cannot be provided at this time-given 
that it will be discretionary during the submittal process.  Please refer to Section 
77 of the Special Provisions and Section 6, "Control of Materials" of the Caltrans 
Specifications and the project special provisions. 

 
8. Question:     Is it possible to extend the projects timelines? 

Answer:  The number of working days were carefully estimated by the Engineer. 
Under certain circumstances the working days could be extended by the Engineer.  
Please refer to Section 8 of the Special Provisions for further information on time 
of completion. 

 


